ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVMM TTEE
March 20, 2012
8:06 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE RESOLUTI ON NO. 11
I n support of providing TRICARE program health care benefits to
United States mlitary retirees as prom sed.

- MOVED CSHR 11(STA) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 219
"An Act exenpting certain enmergency nedical and fire departnent
services fromregul ati on as insurance."
- MOVED CSHB 219( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HR 11

SHORT TI TLE: M LI TARY RETI REES' TRI CARE BENEFI TS
SPONSOR(s): STATE AFFAI RS

03/ 12/ 12 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 12/ 12 (H) STA
03/ 20/ 12 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPl TOL 106

BILL: HB 219
SHORT TI TLE: FI RE AND EMERGENCY MEDI CAL SERVI CES
SPONSOR(s): FEI GE

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 20, 2012



03/31/ 11 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/31/ 11 (H CRA, STA

02/ 16/ 12 (H) CRA AT 8: 00 AM BARNES 124
02/ 16/ 12 (H Heard & Held

02/ 16/ 12 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 01/ 12 (H) CRA AT 8: 00 AM BARNES 124
03/01/12 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

03/ 01/ 12 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 02/ 12 (H) CRA RPT 3DP 3NR

03/ 02/ 12 (H DP: AUSTERMAN, DI CK, FOSTER
03/ 02/ 12 (H) NR. SADDLER, GARDNER, MJUNOZ
03/ 15/ 12 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
03/ 15/ 12 (H Heard & Held

03/ 15/ 12 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 20/ 12 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE DAN SADDLER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HR 11

RI C DAVI DCGE

Vi et nam Vet erans of America Chapter 904

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HR 11

M CHAEL PASCHELL, Staff

Representative Eric Feige

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TION  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 219 on behal f of
Represent ati ve Fei ge, sponsor

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:06: 08 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
nmeeting to order at 8:06 a.m Representatives Keller, Seaton

Johansen, Petersen, Guenberg, and Lynn were present at the call
to order. Representative P. WIlson arrived as the neeting was
i n progress.

HR 11-M LI TARY RETI REES' TRI CARE BENEFI TS

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 20, 2012



8: 06: 33 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
RESCLUTION NO 11, In support of providing TRI CARE program
health care benefits to United States mlitary retirees as
prom sed.

8:06: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nobved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HR 11, Version 27-LS1429\1, Wayne, 3/16/12,
as a work draft. There being no objection, Version | was before
the conmittee.

8: 06: 58 AM
CHAI R LYNN handed the gavel to Vice Chair Keller.
8:07:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN presented HR 11 on behalf of the House State
Affairs Standing Conmttee, sponsor. He disclosed that he
receives health insurance from the State of Al aska, through
Medi care, and - because of his status as a veteran of the
Vietnam War - fromthe U S Governnment's mlitary Tri-Care plan.
He said the federal administration plans to increase costs to
mlitary famlies and retirees by increasing Tri-Care rates,
adding enroll nment fees, indexing fees to nedical inflation, and
establishing "neans testing." He opined that neans testing
would "turn earned benefits into a welfare-based handout,"” and
he enphasized that mlitary health care is not welfare. He said
the U S. promised him continued health benefits after a period
of twenty years' honorable service. He stated, "A promse is a
contract." He said the proposed resolution supports the
continuation of the Tri-Care programas it is now.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said those in the mlitary swear an oath to
protect the nation, and in return they are prom sed that the
country woul d take care of them He said that is a prom se that
must be kept. He offered an excerpt of a 3/12/12 editorial in
The Anchorage Daily News, witten by Paul Jenkins of The
Anchorage Daily Planet, which read as foll ows:

W send them to the Cod-forsaken back alleys of the
world. We pay them squat. W talk the talk; they and
theirs get to walk the talk. W tell them I f you

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 20, 2012



will offer wus your lives, and put your future in
doubt, we will take care of you

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN concl uded as fol | ows:

Yes, sonething does need to be done about [the] out-
of -control federal deficit, but we don't need to
bal ance the budget by throwing our mlitary under the
bus. The admnistration's plan to renege on our
mlitary is obscene and it's disgraceful; it defaults
on the contract between the [U S.] Departnent of
Defense and Anmerica's mlitary. This resolution
before you sends a nessage to those who need to hear
it.

8:11:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to page 2, lines 3-4,
and noted that the proposed resolution would cover only those
retired mlitary personnel who had served "during tinmes of war
and arned conflict". He asked if it is the intent to exclude
those retired mlitary personnel who did not serve during times
of war and arned conflict.

CHAIR LYNN said he intended to include all mlitary retirees.
8:13: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DAN SADDLER, Al aska State Legislature, noted that
he is the chair of the House Special Conmttee on Mlitary and
Veterans' Affairs, and he stated his support of HR 11. He
offered his understanding that the [federal governnent's] plan
is to increase Tri-care fees for mlitary retirees who are under
65 and eligible for Medicare. The increases are from 30 to 78
percent the first vyear, rising over the next five years to
bet ween 94 percent and 345 percent. He said these increases are
the U S. Departnent of Defense's (DoD s) efforts to cut $487

billion from its budget over the next ten years. He said
parenthetically if cuts cannot be nade sonmewhere else in the
multi-trillion-dollar federal budget, then DoD wll be back
before Congress |ooking for another half trillion dollars in
cuts. Representative Saddler said he does not think mlitary
retirees should bear the brunt of these cuts. He echoed

Representative Lynn's statenment that mlitary nenbers have nade
a promse to the nation, and the nation in turn has nmde a
prom se to themin the formof providing health care.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 20, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER said it is not yet clear whether the
intent of the increased Tri-care fees is to force mlitary
retirees in to the "Qbama-Care" federal health care program He
said it has been reported that the goal of the administration in
making these increases is to discourage the mlitary retirees
from using their health care benefits, by increasing the cost.
It has further been reported that the increases are not being
assessed equitably, because they will hit mlitary retirees but
will not affect the civilian enployees of DoD. He opi ned,
"That's just not right.”

8:16: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his objection to the use of the
word "obscene," because he said "that's just name calling.” He
said the people in Washington are just trying to cut the budget;
this may not be the right way to do it. He observed that there
is nothing in the comrttee packet that indicates the reasons
for the cuts. He indicated that HIR 11 is a vehicle solely of
the House, and he said the commttee is only getting one side of
the story. He stated, "It sounds pretty partisan to ne."

8:17:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER said a certain anount of passion is
brought to this issue, and he offered his understanding that the
| anguage to which Representative Guenberg referred cane from
t he quoted | anguage of the aforenentioned M. Jenkins.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is not pointing fingers at
anybody, and he knows it is difficult to point out both sides.
He said his remarks were intended as "constructive conmentary.”

8:19:59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN, in response to Representative Seaton
acknowl edged that the word "obscene® was in his opening
statenent, but it is not in the proposed resolution. He said
those in the mlitary are fighting for one cause, not for
partisan politics.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG st at ed support of HR 11

8:20:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN, in response to Representati ve
Gruenberg's previous coment that HIR 11 was only a House

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 20, 2012



resolution, pointed out that there are a diverse group of people
in the caucus.

8:22:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG replied that this is an unusua
situation, because normally a nmeasure like this would be a joint
resolution, since it is addressed to the federal governnent.

8:23:27 AM
REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON remarked that legislators usually

conduct thenselves in comrittee with respect for those who
testify.

8:.24:21 AM

VICE CHAIR KELLER, regarding the idea of a broken pronise, he
said it is not the first. He remarked upon the critical state
of the nation's health care system He nentioned the noney that
cane to the state for inoculations that is now drying up. He
stated support for HIR 11. He predicted the legislature will be
facing simlar issues in the future - not related solely to
vet erans.

8:27:17 AM

RIC DAVIDGE, Vietnam Veterans of Anerica (VVA) Chapter 904,
testified on behalf of VWA Chapter 904. He said he has served
as the national chair of government affairs and chief |obbyist
for WA, as well as the chair of the Comm ssion of Mlitary and
Veterans Affairs in the Minicipality of Anchorage. He said
recently a group of doctors cane to the conmmssion wth
enotional testinony that as a community it is no longer going to
be able to provide health care services to Tri-Care nenbers,
because Tri-Care now pays only 21 percent of the cost of
servi ces. M. Davidge said there has been a bi-partisan
response to [HIR 11]. He said he does not know any nenber of
Congress who has said he/she supports the cut. He stated, "Both
the House and Senate chairs of the respective conmttees have
come out strongly against this reduction.”

MR. DAVIDGE said he serves the chair of the National Defense of
Veterans Affairs Conmittee for the Al aska Republican Party. He
said there is an anmendnent to the party platform that basically
states that when soneone enlists or is conmssioned in mlitary
service, the benefit package at that tine cannot be dim nished

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 20, 2012



over the terns of his/her service. He said he suspects this
will be carried forward through state and national conventions,
and he noted that there are people in the Denocratic Party
| ooki ng at the same idea.

MR. DAVIDGE said the U S. Coast Guard is not a part of DoD; it
is part of the U S. Departnment of Honeland Security. He opi ned
that the U S. Coast Guard should be included in HIR 11. He said
CGeorge Washington once stated that the way the nation treats its
mlitary veterans will, in many ways, determne the country's
ability to defend itself in the future. He stated, "This is a
fundanmental basic anger that veterans have against their
government: the notion that they were promsed a certain |eve

of services, based on an extraordinary dedication to protect
this country and advance the notion of human freedom only to
find after 20 years of service that those benefits are
di m ni shed. " He said he thinks that is why both parties are
| ooking at this platformissue.

8:31: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested adding |anguage to the
proposed resolution, as follows:

Wereas a group of Anchorage physicians recently
announced that, because Tri-Care pays less than 21
percent of the cost of care for eligible patients,
they will no | onger serve Tri-Care patients.

MR. DAVIDGE said that is a direct reflection of his comrents
and he said he woul d support such an anendnent.

8:32: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if including Honeland Security would
i nclude nore than veterans of the Coast Guard. He said he wants
to ensure that the |anguage is not broadened to the point of
including non-mlitary personnel.

8:33:45 AM

MR. DAVIDGE answered that that clarification could be made by
speci fying the U S. Coast Cuard.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON suggest ed: "and Coast CGuard personnel of
t he Departnent of Honeland Security.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 20, 2012



MR. DAVI DGE said that would take care of it.
8:34: 40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN noted that Secretary of Defense, Leon
Panetta, was quoted as saying that sone of the fees have not
been increased since 1990. He asked M. Davidge if he thinks
that is accurate information.

MR. DAVIDGE confirnmed that is correct. He said the cost of
service has gone up, and the ability to pay has decreased. He
said the aforenmentioned group of doctors had formed a work group
to try to find a way to continue to help mlitary famlies and
retired service nenbers, but were unsuccessful.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked if the reason for a 300-percent
increase in fees is an attenpt to catch up with the cost of
heal th care.

MR. DAVIDGE responded that health care is one of the biggest
cost explosions that DoD has faced, but one of the biggest bills
the departnent pays each year is unenploynent insurance. He
stated that the value of tri-care coverage over the last 20
years has deteriorated, and the famlies have had to come up
wi th the bal ance.

8:37:22 AM

MR. DAVIDGE, in response to Vice Chair Keller, said he thinks
adding "the U S. Coast Guard/Departnment of Honeland Security”
would nmeke it clear that the only entity outside of DoD to be
added to the resolution would be the U S. Coast Cuard.

8:.38:10 AM

VI CE CHAIR KELLER, after ascertaining that there was no one el se
who wished to testify, closed public testinony.

8:38:39 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 1,
a handwitten anmendnent, which read as follows [original

punct uation provided]:

Wereas a group of Anchorage physicians recently
announced that, because Tricare pays |less than 21% of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 20, 2012



the cost of care for eligible patients, they will no
| onger serve Tricare patients; and

Add to the appropriate line in the bill
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
8:39: 06 AM

VICE CHAIR KELLER noved to anend Conceptual Anendnent 1, to
change the last |ine of Conceptual Amendnent 1 to reflect that
"they have determined to no |onger serve". He said the reason
is "we don't know exactly what wll happen” or "exactly the
action that was taken."

8:40: 41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cl arified that Conceptual Anmendnment 1,
if amended by the proposed anendnent to Conceptual Amendnment 1,
woul d read as foll ows:

Wereas a group of Anchorage physicians recently
announced that, because Tricare pays |less than 21% of
the costs of care for eligible patients, they have
determned that they wll no longer serve Tricare
patients; and

8:41:44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN suggested "they wll no |onger provide
medi cal services for Tricare patients".

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks that should be offered
as a separate anmendnent.

VI CE CHAI R KELLER concurr ed.
8:42: 19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN questioned whether the proposed changes
woul d be as neaningful on a national |evel as to Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like the commttee to
focus on the proposed anmendnent to Conceptual Amendnent 1.

8:42: 47 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 20, 2012



VI CE CHAI R KELLER asked if there was any objection to the notion
to adopt the amendnent to Conceptual Amendnent 1. [No objection
was stated, and the anendnent to Conceptual Anendnent 1 was
treated as adopted.]

8:43:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN indicated his intent was to offer an
anendnent to Conceptual Anmendnent 1, as anended; however, he
said he thinks it is not necessary.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG encouraged Representative Petersen to
of fer the anendnent.

VI CE CHAI R KELLER asked the conmittee to "press on."
8:43: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG spoke to Conceptual Amendnment 1, as
amended. He said it reflects how this issue is affecting the
| argest comunity in Al aska.

8:44:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN ventured that if there are physicians in
Anchorage who are saying they will no longer be able to treat
Tricare patients, then perhaps this is occurring in other
| ocations across the U S., as well.

8:44: 46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ~ JOHANSEN  expressed concern t hat adopti ng
Conceptual Amendnent, as anended, nmay adversely affect the

chances of the resolution passing on the House fl oor. He said
the identification of "a group of Anchorage physicians" is
vague.

8:46: 30 AM

MR. DAVIDGE clarified that this was a group of physicians in
Anchorage that had been serving Tricare patients until its
menbers reached a point where they could no longer afford to do
SoO. He stated, "I did not detect any partisan interest at all
this was just genuinely a concern by the nedical conmunity in
Anchor age. " He said the group included surgeons and primry

physi cians, and he said he could find out the nanmes of those
i ndi viduals in the group.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 20, 2012



8:47:37 AM

VICE CHAIR KELLER rmamintained his objection to the notion to
adopt Conceptual Amendnment 1, as anended.

8:47:52 AM
8:48: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he was wunaware of this issue
before hearing M. Davidge' s testinony. He expressed concern
about physicians not being able to serve the increasing nunber
of Baby Booners reaching the age where they qualify for
Medi car e.

8:48: 43 AM

VICE CHAIR KELLER, in response to Representative Lynn, suggested
that the anendnent could be added now and addressed by the House
Rul es Standing Conmttee or by the body on the House fl oor.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN expressed disconfort in adding a |ocal issue
to the resolution. He echoed Representative Johansen's remark
t hat he does not know who this group of doctors is.

8:50: 07 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG proffered that apparently this was a

significant group of doctors, and the point is that they can no
| onger serve Tricare patients.

8:50: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN reiterated that he is wunconfortable
interjecting a local issue into a broad resolution and not
knowi ng the exact identity of the group of physicians. He said
he does not want to jeopardize the resolution. He said, "It's
the chairman's bill, and whatever he wants to do |I'Il|l support."”
8:52: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = PETERSEN suggested generalizing [ Conceptual
Amendnent 1, as anended] by taking out "the local option.”

VI CE CHAIR KELLER said that would require a separate anmendnent.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 20, 2012



8:52:31 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representative G uenberg voted in
favor of adopting Concept ual Amendmrrent 1, as anended.
Representatives Johansen, Seaton, Keller, Petersen, and Lynn
voted against it. Therefore, Conceptual Anendnent 1, as

anended, failed by a vote of 1-5.
8:53: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 2, a
handwitten anmendnent, which read as follows [ origi nal
punct uation provided]:

Page 1 line 13

insert after mlitary

"and US Coast Cuard"
There bei ng no objection, Conceptual Amendnent 2 was adopt ed.
8:53: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Conceptual Amendnent 3, as
fol | ows:

Page 2, line 3, between "and" and "served":
Del ete "who have"

Page 2, line 4, between "nation" and "the TRI CARE":
Del ete "during tinmes of war and armed conflict”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he thinks other |anguage in the
resolution has identified those who "are at risk of nortal
harn, and he indicated that [Conceptual Anmendnent 3] would
remove a limtation fromthe proposed resol ution.

8:55:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to Representative Johansen
clarified the reason for taking out "during times of war and
armed conflict”" is to include those in the mlitary who have

served [in times of peace], when they could have been at risk at
any tinme, having sworn an oath.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 20, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN remarked that everyone is at risk of going
to war whether or not he/she is sent to war.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN r enpoved hi s objection.
8:56:48 AM

VICE CHAIR KELLER announced that Conceptual Amendnent 3 was
adopt ed.

8:57: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report CSHR 11, Version 27-
LS1429\|, Wayne, 3/16/12, as anended, out of conmittee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, CSHR 11(STA) was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

8:57: 20 AM
The conm ttee took an at-ease from8:57 a.m to 8:59 a.m

[During the at-ease, Vice Chair Keller handed the gavel back to
Chair Lynn.]

HB 219- FI RE AND EMERGENCY MEDI CAL SERVI CES

8:59:41 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the final order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 219, "An Act exenpting certain energency nedical and
fire departnment services fromregulation as insurance.”

8:59:54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to adopt the conmittee substitute
(CS) for HB 219, Version 27-LS0638\D, Bailey, 3/15/12, as a work
draft. There being no objection, Version D was before the
conmittee.

9:00:16 AM
M CHAEL PASCHELL, Staff, Representative Eric Feige, Al aska State
Legi slature, presented HB 219 on behalf of Representative Feige,

sponsor. He disclosed that Representative Feige is the chief of
the Chickaloon Fire Service, Inc., and said he is the assistant

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 20, 2012



chief and board nenber of the Rural Deltana Volunteer Fire
Depart ment . He said HB 19 would provide a nmechanism to provide
fire and energency services organizations to receive donations
or support from conmunity nenbers, and if the entities charge
for their services, they could, in turn, discount the services
for those people who contributed to the organization. The
probl em has been that that activity is deened as insurance, and
HB 219 woul d renpove that activity fromthe state insurance | aws.

MR. PASCHELL said Version D would nake changes in response to

conmttee comments at the last bill hearing. Those changes are:
on page 1, lines 5 and 10, the word "voluntary"” was added before
"agreenment”; and on page 1, lines 8 and 13, the phrase "in the
communi ty" was added. In response to a request at the previous

hearing, he said he spoke to the Al aska Muinicipal League (AM),
and he indicated that issuing an opinion on HB 219 was not high
on AML's priority list.

9:02: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reported that [his office] contacted
Anchor Point Volunteer Fire & Rescue, Bear Creek Fire/Energency

Medi cal Servi ces Depart ment , Centr al Emergency  Servi ces,
Kachamak Energency Services, Seward Fire Departnent, Honer
Vol unteer Fire Departnent, and Mose Pass Volunteer Fire

Conmpany, all of which expressed no problem with the proposed
bill and "generally support it."

9:02: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER opined that HB 219 is a good bill.

9:02: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report CSHB 219, Version 27-
LS0638\D, Bailey, 3/15/12, out of commttee wth individual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There bei ng
no objection, CSHB 219(STA) was reported out of the House State
Affairs Standing Commttee.

9:03:45 AM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 9:04
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 20, 2012



